



**Document name:** SPRFMO CTC9 Report 2022

Meeting location: Virtual

**URL:** https://www.sprfmo.int/meetings/ctc/9th-ctc-2022/



# Contents

1. Welcome and Introduction	1
2. Administrative Arrangements	1
a. Adoption of the Agenda	1
b. Meeting Documents	1
c. Programme and Timetable	1
d. Rapporteuring and report writing	1
3. Assessment of Compliance of Members and CNCPs	1
a. Consideration of the Revised Draft Compliance Report	1
b. Follow-up actions taken since the last meeting	2
c. Development of Provisional Compliance Report	2
4. Matters Concerning Implementation of Current CMMs	3
a. CMM 01-2021 Trachurus murphyi	3
b. CMM 05-2021 Commission Record of Vessels	3
c. CMM 06-2020 Commission VMS	3
d. CMM 07-2021 Port Inspection	4
e. CMM 07-2021 Report of the Intersession Working Group on Port Inspections (WG-PI)	4
f. CMM 16-2021 SPRFMO Observer Programme	4
g. The 2020 VME Encounter	5
5. Examination of Current and Draft IUU Vessel List	5
a. Examination of the 2022 Draft IUU Vessel List	5
b. Examination of the Current (2021) IUU Vessel List	5
c. Development of a 2022 Provisional IUU Vessel List	
6. Assessment of CNCP Applications	5
a. Current CNCPs	5
b. Other applicants	5
7. Conservation and Management Measures	5
a. Proposal to Amend Current CMMs	5
b. Proposals for new CMMs	6
c. CMMs for review in 2022	7
8. Other Matters	8
a. Proposals for Cooperation (MoU/Arrangements)	8
9. Office Holders	8
a. Election of CTC Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson	8
10. Adoption of the CTC Report	8
11. Close of Meeting	8
ANNEX 1 - CTC 9 Meeting Agenda	9
ANNEX 2 - List of Participants	10
ANNEX 3 - Annual Meeting Programme and Timetables	19
ANNEX 4 - Provisional Compliance Report	21
ANNEX 5 - Provisional IUU Vessel List	22



Held remotely, 19 to 22 January 2022

## CTC9 - Meeting Report

#### 1. Welcome and Introduction

The CTC Chairperson, Mr Andrew Wright (New Zealand), opened the 9<sup>th</sup> meeting of the Compliance and Technical Committee, welcoming all participants, and recognising the challenges of virtual meetings.

### 2. Administrative Arrangements

- a. Adoption of the Agenda
- The CTC adopted the agenda (CTC9-Doc01) without modification (Annex 1).
  - b. Meeting Documents
- The CTC noted the List of Meeting Documents (CTC9-Doc03\_rev2). The list of Participants is in Annex 2.
  - c. Programme and Timetable
- The CTC Chairperson presented and briefly overviewed the meeting programme (COMM10-Doc04\_rev1, Annex 3). The CTC Chairperson noted the limited time available for the meeting and encouraged participants to be concise in their interventions.
  - d. Rapporteuring and report writing
- 5 The Secretariat provided rapporteuring and report writing services.

## 3. Assessment of Compliance of Members and CNCPs

- a. Consideration of the Revised Draft Compliance Report
- The Secretariat introduced the revised Draft Compliance Report (CTC9-Doc04\_rev1 Restricted). The Chairperson noted that, consistent with paragraph 11 of CMM 10-2020, the revised Draft Compliance Report had been reviewed in advance of the meeting and for 9 situations where a deadline or timeframe had not been met within the established timelines (and it was not a repeat occurrence), a default status of "Non-Compliant, No Further Action" had been assigned.
- The CTC reviewed each of the 11 remaining potential compliance issues and the subsequent compliance status assigned for each issue is reflected in the Provisional Compliance Report (COMM10-WP14 Restricted).
- The first two issues pertained to Ecuador and information pertaining to the observer program during the CJM fishery (reference CMM 01-2021 [*Trachurus murphyi*]; CMM 02-2021 [Data Standards]). After additional clarification of the issue pertaining to the bycatch harvest of CJM in the observed small pelagic fishery within the EEZ the CTC agreed to assign a status of Compliant.
- The next two issues were reviewed with respect to Chile and Ecuador not providing all the necessary information contained in Annex 1 of CMM 05-2021 (Record of Vessels). Some Members considered that there was uncertainty whether the current language in paragraph 5 of the CMM was binding, whereas other Members



considered that it was binding. After discussion, the CTC agreed to assign a status of "Not Assessed" and recommended to amend the CMM. A Working Paper (WP) was developed by the Cook Islands that will be considered further during the Commission meeting

- There was an issue identified for Peru with respect to the Port Inspection Measure (CMM 07-2021) and not providing all notifications for port calls. The CTC agreed to assign a status of non-Compliant with provision that Peru make their best efforts to provide the outstanding information, if possible noting limitations with third party providers.
- 11 With respect to issues pertaining to the submission of Implementation Reports (CMM 10-2020), the CTC agreed to assign 3 Members (Cuba, Ecuador and the Russian Federation) a status of non-compliant and noted that further action is needed to take steps to ensure that the obligation is met in the future.
- With respect to the "New and Exploratory Fisheries" measure (CMM 13-2021), 2 Members (the European Union and Russian Federation) were assessed with respect to fishing Splendid Alfonsino (BYS) during the reporting period using pelagic trawl outside the evaluated area within the Bottom Fishing CMM, which appeared to be an exploratory fishery without Commission approval. The CTC agreed to assign a status of "Priority Non-Compliant, No Further Action for the European Union and the deliberations pertaining to the Russian Federation are ongoing.
- Finally, China was assessed for failing to meet the observer requirements as per the Jumbo Flying Squid Fishery (CMM 18-2020) due to the pandemic situation, the CTC agreed to assign a status of "non-Compliant, No Further Action".
- Additionally, some Members requested that the CTC undertake a review of the VMS issues identified in Annex 1 of the VMS Implementation Report (CTC9-Doc8 and CTC9-Doc8.1\_rev1) for 2020 and 2021 as part of the Compliance Assessment. The CTC agreed to undertake a review but recognizing the time constraints and the procedural fairness of allowing Members adequate time to respond, decided to discuss further to establish a satisfactory means to conduct the Compliance Assessment of VMS issues (refer item 4c below).

#### b. Follow-up actions taken since the last meeting

- The Secretariat presented document CTC9-Doc05 summarising the actions taken by Members and CNCPs in response to two issues identified from previous meetings requiring follow-up actions.
- The Russian Federation was required to provide photos of bird bafflers deployed while at sea. Photographs were provided and the CTC concluded that the bird baffler met the technical specifications in the seabirds CMM (CMM 09-2017).
- New Zealand was obligated to provide quarterly updates on the ongoing prosecution of the FV AMALTAL APOLLO. The CTC noted that the quarterly reports have been provided as required.
- In response to a request from 2 Observers, DSCC and ECONZ, for access to the quarterly updates New Zealand, as the originator of the reports, indicated it would take the request under consideration.

#### c. Development of Provisional Compliance Report

- The Secretariat, in consultation with the CTC Chairperson, developed the Provisional Compliance Report (COMM10-WP14 Restricted) based on the CTC discussion and the 2022 draft provisional compliance report matrix for consideration by the Commission.
- The CTC noted that while there was a reasonable level of compliance overall, as outlined in the Provisional Compliance Report, there were several noteworthy issues identified during the reporting period, and there is room for future improvement. The CTC agreed to forward the Provisional Compliance Report (COMM10-WP14 Restricted, Annex 4 to this report), the executive summary, and the compliance report matrix to the Commission for consideration and recommended that the Commission consider it as its Final Compliance Report, pending resolution of the compliance issue that remains open.



## 4. Matters Concerning Implementation of Current CMMs

#### a. CMM 01-2021 Trachurus murphyi

The Secretariat presented the *Trachurus murphyi* Implementation report (CTC9-Doc06) and a subsequent revision to update the catch numbers (CTC9-Doc06\_rev1). It was confirmed by the Secretariat that the TAC set out in paragraph 10 of the measure for the stock throughout its range was overcaught again in 2021 (by 3.8%). Concern was expressed that this exceeds the advice from the Scientific Committee. **The CTC noted** the Implementation report.

#### b. CMM 05-2021 Commission Record of Vessels

The Secretariat presented the Commission Record of Vessels Implementation report (CTC9-Doc07). One Member noted that there were several vessels with authorization end dates in 2020 or early in 2021 that were active in the SPRFMO area and requested follow-up. The CTC requested the Secretariat to conduct additional validation procedures to cross check the fishing activity and ensure all vessels in the SPRFMO area have current authorisations. The CTC noted the Implementation report.

#### c. CMM 06-2020 Commission VMS

- The Secretariat presented the Commission VMS Implementation and Operation report (CTC9-Doc08), including a summary of VMS issues (Annex 1 CTC9-Doc08.1\_rev1 Restricted) and proposed workplan for 2022 (Annex 2). The Secretariat presented five considerations to the CTC. **The CTC agreed** to the following 4 recommendations:
  - i. Future VMS Implementation reports will contain an Annex summarizing VMS issues;
  - ii. Individual VMS related issues will be assessed in future compliance reports;
  - iii. The conceptual workplan related to VMS data outlined in Annex 2 will be implemented;
  - iv. The Secretariat will review the relevant sections of CMMs with VMS components and prepare a proposal to CTC10 to clarify / harmonize the various components.
- The recommendation to authorize the Secretariat to use AIS as a secondary tool for electronic monitoring of vessel activity was not unanimously supported as concerns were raised about the accuracy of AIS.
- There was considerable discussion around the VMS issues and the CTC agreed that they may pertain directly to the Members obligations and need to be assessed in the Compliance Report. It was expressed that even technical, IT and software issues may fall under the purview of the Members and CNCPs. The specific details of the circumstances surrounding the VMS compliance issues can be examined by CTC to determine a compliance status and any follow up action required.
- The CTC agreed to assess the VMS issues identified in Annex 1 that fall within the current assessment period (01 October 2020 to 30 September 2021). Given the time constraints at this meeting, and to allow Members/CNCPs adequate time to prepare, the CTC agreed to undertake the assessment of these VMS issues at CTC10 and to add additional time to the CTC10 agenda to facilitate this assessment. The Secretariat is tasked to update the VMS Issues summary in accordance with the direction provided by CTC to facilitate the assessment process.
- The CTC agreed to assess the VMS issues falling within the next reporting period (01 October 2021 to 30 September 2022) at its next meeting as part of the annual Compliance Assessment.
- The CTC agreed not to consider those issues that occurred between 1 January 2020 and 30 September 2020 as these fell outside of the current compliance assessment reporting period.
- The CTC noted the report and thanked the Compliance Manager and the Secretariat for the substantial work done over the past year to review the Commission VMS, identify implementation issues, and follow-up with Members/CNCPs regarding potential causes and resolutions.



#### d. CMM 07-2021 Port Inspection

- The Secretariat presented the Port Inspection Implementation Report (CTC9-Doc09\_rev1) and noted the connectivity to the Report from the Working Group on Port Inspection (CTC9-Doc13).
- The CTC noted the report, including that the rate of inspection of SPRFMO foreign fishing vessels remains quite high (94%) and well above the minimum threshold of 5%, and that there were no infringements identified during 31 port inspections.
- The Secretariat raised a possible ambiguity in the language of the CMM regarding the Scope and application of the Measure as it pertains to Catcher vessels without SPRFMO resources onboard and Carrier vessels. A number of Members were of the view that the language in the measure regarding scope and application is clear. **The CTC determined** that it does not require clarification or revision.
  - e. CMM 07-2021 Report of the Intersession Working Group on Port Inspections (WG-PI)
- The Chairperson of the WG-PI (Fiona HARFORD- EU) presented the report on the Intersessional Working Group (WG) meeting activities and outcomes pertaining to the 2 key taskings (CTC9-Doc13).
- With respect to increasing the minimum port inspection rate, the WG discussed the issues and the possible options but did not arrive at a recommendation to bring forward.
- With respect to the discrepancies in catch amount between port call notices and port inspections the WG-PI brought forth 2 recommendations to the CTC. Firstly, that Annex 1 be amended to reflect that port call request amounts are "estimated" amounts and secondly, that the Secretariat investigate how port inspections might be added to the verification processes outlined in CMM 02 (Data Standards) and identify any workload implications.
- The CTC noted the report and accepted both recommendations.

#### f. CMM 16-2021 SPRFMO Observer Programme

- The Secretariat presented the SPRFMO Observer Programme Implementation report (CTC9-Doc10) including the recommendations regarding Accreditation of the national Observer Programmes for Ecuador, Korea and Chinese Taipei.
- The CTC noted that MRAG, the SPRFMO Commission's Observer Programme Accreditation Evaluator, had provided a favourable Final Evaluation Report on the Observer Programmes of Korea and Chinese Taipei. **The CTC recommended** under paragraph 33 of CMM 16-2021 that the Commission adopt the Final Reports of the Accreditation Evaluator and grant accreditation to the Observer Programmes of Korea and Chinese Taipei.
- The CTC noted that MRAG did not recommend Ecuador for accreditation at this time due to inadequacies in their data integrity and impartiality declarations and a lack of documentation regarding data validation procedures.
- The CTC agreed to postpone the accreditation of Ecuador until all requirements are met. Ecuador is committed to continue to actively work towards addressing these outstanding impediments to their accreditation with hopes of achieving accreditation in 2023. It was noted that deferral of Ecuador to 2023 should not unduly impact others seeking accreditation.
- The CTC noted that there are 5 remaining Members / CNCPs wishing to be accredited with the SPRFMO Observer programme and that the obligation to deploy only observers sourced from accredited programmes on board vessels fishing for resources for which a minimum level of observer coverage applies commences on 01 January 2024. In consideration of this time constraint, the CTC seeks to amend CMM 16-2021 paragraph 55 to extend the date. The Cook Islands has submitted COMM10-WP13 to achieve this extension.



#### g. The 2020 VME Encounter

The 2020 VME Encounter was discussed in association with the review of CMM 03-2021 Bottom Fishing, under section 7.c03 of this report.

#### Examination of Current and Draft IUU Vessel List

- a. Examination of the 2022 Draft IUU Vessel List
- The CTC noted that there are no vessels included on the 2022 Draft IUU Vessel List (CTC9-Doc11 Restricted) and that it therefore has no recommendations to make for consideration by the Commission in this regard.
  - b. Examination of the Current (2021) IUU Vessel List
- The CTC noted that there are no vessels on the Current 2021 IUU Vessel List (CTC9-Doc11) and that it therefore has no recommendations to make for consideration by the Commission in this regard.
  - c. Development of a 2022 Provisional IUU Vessel List
- Following the examination of the Draft and Current IUU Vessel Lists, **the CTC adopted** a 2022 Provisional IUU Vessel List (Annex 5), noting there were no vessels on it.
- The CTC noted an intervention from 2 Observers, DSCC and ECONZ, requesting that there be greater transparency in the development of IUU Vessel Lists that would permit Observer participation throughout the process, and to also access relevant information which would normally be restricted in its distribution.

#### 6. Assessment of CNCP Applications

- a. Current CNCPs
- The CTC considered the 3 applications from Curaçao, Liberia and Panama for renewal of their CNCP status. Panama committed to ensuring appropriate follow-up to its VMS issues as identified in the VMS implementation report. **The CTC recommended** to the Commission that all three applications be accepted.
  - b. Other applicants
- The CTC considered the application received from Belize to attain CNCP status with SPRFMO. Belize clarified that its reason for applying was its wish to expand its fishing opportunities for small pelagic species to the SPRFMO Convention Area. After discussion pertaining to Belize's previous involvement in SPRFMO, including its situation of arrears when it left the organisation, and also its reasons for applying, **the CTC recommended** to the Commission that Belize's application be accepted and noted its commitment to make voluntary contributions.

## 7. Conservation and Management Measures

a. Proposal to Amend Current CMMs

#### a01. CMM 12-2020 Transhipment (ECU)

- Ecuador introduced its proposal COMM10-Prop01 to establish a mandatory regime for the in-port transhipment of Jumbo Flying Squid. While there was support for the objective of ensuring the proper monitoring and control of at-sea transhipments and that transhipment monitoring and control mechanisms should apply in the same way to all fisheries, some Members noted that at-sea transhipments, at times, are necessary and reasonable.
- 50 **The CTC recommended** that this proposal be forwarded to the Commission for its consideration.



#### a02. CMM 14b-2020 Exploratory Potting (COK)

- The Cook Islands presented COMM10-Prop02 seeking to streamline the Fisheries Operation Plan and ensure its consistency with the relevant CMM. The amendments were in two main areas: technical editing and changes to the management arrangements. Proposed changes include depth restrictions, the removal of trip limits and updating the trap specifications. There were no comments from the Members/CNCP's on the technical aspects of the proposal.
- The CTC recommended that this proposal be forwarded to the Commission for its consideration.

a03. CMM 18-2020 Jumbo Flying Squid Fishery (ECU)

- Ecuador presented COMM10-Prop03 proposing a gradual increase in the observer coverage on vessels fishing for Jumbo Flying Squid to 100%. The ensuing discussion indicated some support to improve observer coverage however it was expressed that there needed to be science input into the determination of what levels are adequate to meet science needs and manage the stock. Interested parties were encouraged to engage with Ecuador on this matter.
- The CTC recommended that this proposal be forwarded to the Commission for its consideration.

a04. CMM 18-2020 Jumbo Flying Squid Fishery (CHN)

- China presented COMM10-Prop04 to limit the fishing effort in the squid fishery on the basis of the number of vessels and total gross tonnage of squid jigging vessels authorized as of 31 December 2020. Discussion indicated the proposal aligned with SC9 recommendations and were conceptually supported however more work was required. It was noted that the tables were incomplete and there were some concerns expressed that the proposal may limit the use of other gear types and the future participation of developing coastal states.
- The CTC recommended that this proposal be forwarded to the Commission for its consideration.

a05. CMM 18-2020 Jumbo Flying Squid Fishery (EU)

- The EU presented COMM10-Prop05 to introduce an effort limit for Members and CNPCs with substantial catches of jumbo flying squid in the Convention Area, with other Members and CNCPs being encouraged to refrain from expanding their fishing effort. Discussion indicated that the proposal was conceptually supported but some concerns were expressed whether there was potential that the wording may limit the future participation or expansion of fishing effort by developing coastal States or Members with a historical track record in the fishery which are not currently active. Others suggested that some of the language lacked clarity and was open to interpretation. While one Member suggested that the scope should be focused on squid jigging vessels only rather than apply to all squid fisheries in a general manner.
- The CTC recommended that this proposal be forwarded to the Commission for its consideration.
  - b. Proposals for new CMMs

b01. CMM for 2022 Industry Acoustic Survey (Alfonsino and Redbait) (EU)

- The EU presented COMM10-Prop06/Prop6.1 for an acoustic survey on splendid alfonsino and redbait in the Convention Area in 2022 for the purpose of obtaining scientific data to improve the understanding of the biology, biomass, and spatio-temporal distribution of these species. Comments were provided on the application of the exploratory fishery CMM, whether the Commission should establish a CMM for an overall framework for research, the destination of the catch from the proposed verification hauls, and the biodiversity of the geographic area proposed for the survey. The EU noted that the proposal was clearly scientific in nature and therefore a research fishery rather than an exploratory fishery. The EU also clarified that the catches would be discarded and that its intention in proposing a CMM was intended to ensure that the proposed activities were approved by the Commission and properly framed.
- The CTC recommended that this proposal be forwarded to the Commission for its consideration.



#### b02. CMM for Exploratory fishing for toothfish (NZ)

- NZ presented COMM10-Prop07/Prop7.1 to extend its exploratory fishery for toothfish (by the method of bottom longline) for fishing in years 2022, 2023, and 2024. There were no comments put forth.
- The CTC recommended that this proposal be forwarded to the Commission for its consideration.
  - c. CMMs for review in 2022

#### c01. CMM 01 Trachurus murphyi (SEC)

- The Secretariat presented COMM10-Prop08 which seeks to implement the SC advice regarding a precautionary 15% increase in 2022 catches throughout the range of Jack mackerel and proposes to roll-over, for one year only, the allocation mechanism.
- The CTC recommended that this proposal be forwarded to the Commission for adoption.

#### c02. CMM 02 Data Standards (SEC)

- The Secretariat presented COMM10-Prop09 proposing a period of 3 years for the next CMM review period and an amendment to standardise the term "paragraph" over "subparagraph" throughout the SPRFMO CMMs.
- The CTC recommended that this proposal be forwarded to the Commission for adoption.

#### c03. CMM 03 Bottom Fishing (SEC)

- The Secretariat presented COMM10-Prop10 to modify the definition of bottom fishing, to resolve minor inconsistencies with language and annex titles within the CMM and to set a new review date of 2025. No issues raised with the review date, but one Member questioned whether it was necessary to clarify that potting was bottom fishing. The Cook Islands confirmed that it considered potting to be within the scope of the CMM, whether or not the proposed changes were adopted.
- The USA presented WPs (COMM10-WP10, COMM10-WP11) pertaining to the planned Bottom fishing review and corresponding proposed amendments to the bottom fishing CMM. Based on prior consultations with other Members, it is proposed to use the intersessional period to advance discussions on a number of key elements in particular the appropriate scale of management to prevent significant adverse impacts on VMEs, spatial management scenarios, the move-on rule and VME encounters, in view of reviewing the bottom fishing CMM in 2023.
- DSCC and ECONZ asked that all observers be able to participate and expressed interest in participating in the intersessional work referring to their comments on the review of the bottom fishing CMM (COMM10-WP12), Some Members also noted that Observers have participated in the past when these discussions were held.
- The Secretariat offered to work with the USA to combine the CMM proposals.
- The CTC recommended that the Bottom fishing proposals (COMM10-Prop10, COMM10-WP11) be forwarded to the Commission for its consideration.
- The CTC recommended that COMM10-WP10 for an intersessional process to prepare the review of the bottom fishing CMM be forwarded to the Commission for adoption.

#### The 2020 VME Encounter (NZ)

- As per paragraph 33 of CMM 03-2021, New Zealand proposed an approach regarding the Management actions pertaining to the temporary **closure** of an area where a VME encounter took place in 2020, which is still in place. **The CTC agreed** that the closure will be considered as part of the WG on Bottom Fishing workplan (COMM10-WP10) and **recommended** that the temporary closure will remain in place until the Bottom Fishing measure is reviewed in 2023.
- HSFG expressed concern that the review may take longer than anticipated and drag out the closure.



#### c04. CMM 17 Marine Pollution (SEC)

- The Secretariat presented COMM10-Prop11 proposing a period of 3 years for the next CMM review period and an amendment to standardise the term "paragraph" over "subparagraph" throughout the SPRFMO CMMs. There was discussion concerning the next review date in the absent of a current review and pending the outcomes of the upcoming UN Ocean Conference. Following discussions, the review date was amended to 2024.
- The CTC recommended that this proposal (COMM10-Prop11\_rev1) be forwarded to the Commission for adoption.

#### 8. Other Matters

- a. Proposals for Cooperation (MoU/Arrangements)
   a01. Proposal to extend SPRFMO-CCAMLR Arrangement (SEC)
- The Secretariat presented COMM10-Prop12 to renew the Arrangement with CCAMLR for another 3 years. It was noted that CCAMLR had already agreed to extend the Arrangement with SPRFMO at their annual meeting. One Member pointed out the importance of ongoing collaboration with CCAMLR especially given that there are ongoing toothfish fisheries in the SPRFMO Convention Area. **The CTC recommended** that the Commission **approve** the renewal of the Arrangement.

#### a02. Proposal to extend MoU SPRFMO-CPPS (SEC)

The Secretariat presented COMM10-Prop13 to extend the MoU with the CPPS. It was noted that the CPPS requested a change in clause 7 to amend the date to reflect an indefinite period (subject to termination by either party). Examples of collaboration with respect to the MoU were noted. There was support for continuing the MoU with some changes to the language to make it more consistent with the language used in instruments of less than Treaty status. Subject to the CPPS agreeing to the language modification, the CTC recommended that Commission approve the extension of the MoU.

#### a03. Invitation to join the IMCS Network (Observer Paper)

- The Executive Director of the IMCS Network presented COMM10-Obs02, requesting that SPRFMO seek membership in the organization. He noted that most Members/CNCPs and other RFMOs were already members. There are no legal or financial obligations and Membership provides another avenue to build on existing collaborations and enhance efforts against IUU fishing. There was support expressed from the Members.
- 80 The CTC recommended that the Commission approve SPRFMO to seek membership in the IMCS Network

#### 9. Office Holders

#### a. Election of CTC Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson

- Noting that the second term of the CTC Chairperson (Mr Andrew Wright, New Zealand) concludes at the close of the 10th Commission meeting, **Ms Katherine Bernal (Chile)** was elected as new CTC Chairperson in accordance with Rule 5 of the Rules of Procedure. The CTC commended Mr Wright's Chairmanship over the last 4 years and recognised the significant contribution that he had made to the CTCs work.
- 82 Currently, the vice-chairperson position is not filled. The CTC noted that this position should be filled in accordance with Rule 5 of the Rules of Procedure; however, no nominations were put forth at the CTC meeting.

#### 10. Adoption of the CTC Report

The CTC adopted the meeting report on 22 January 2022 at 9:15 am NZDT.

#### 11. Close of Meeting

The meeting was closed on 22 January 2022 at 9:16 am NZDT



Held remotely, 19 - 22 January 2022, (NZDT)

## ANNEX 1 - CTC 9 Meeting Agenda

- 1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION
- 2. ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS
  - a. Adoption of the Agenda
  - b. Meeting Documents
- 3. ASSESSMENT OF COMPLIANCE OF MEMBERS AND CNCPs
  - a. Consideration of the Draft Compliance Report
  - b. Follow-up actions taken since the last meeting
  - c. Development of Provisional Compliance Report
- 4. MATTERS CONCERNING IMPLEMENTATION OF CURRENT CMMs (to be taken as read)
  - a. CMM 01-2021 Trachurus murphyi
  - b. CMM 05-2021 Commission Record of Vessels
  - c. CMM 06-2020 Commission VMS Implementation report
  - d. CMM 07-2021 Port Inspection Implementation report
  - e. Report back from the Intersessional Working Group on Port Inspections
  - f. CMM 16-2021 SPRFMO Observer Programme including evaluation of Observer Programmes
  - g. The 2020 VME Encounter
- 5. EXAMINATION OF CURRENT AND DRAFT IUU LIST
  - a. Examination of the 2022 Draft IUU List
  - b. Examination of the Current (2021) IUU List
  - c. Development of a 2022 Provisional IUU List
- 6. ASSESSMENT OF CNCPs APPLICATIONS
  - a. Current CNCPs
  - b. Other applicants
- 7. CONSERVATION AND MANAGEMENT MEASURES
  - a. Proposals to amend current CMMs will be added as necessary
  - b. Proposals for new CMMs will be added as necessary
  - c. CMMs for review in 2022:
    - c1. CMM 01-2020 Trachurus murphyi
    - c2. CMM 02-2021 Data Standards
    - c3. CMM 03-2021 Bottom Fishing
    - c4. CMM 12-2020 Transhipment
    - c5. CMM 14a-2019 Exploratory Toothfish New Zealand
    - c6. CMM 14b-2021 Exploratory Potting Cook Islands
    - c7. CMM 17-2020 Marine Pollution
- 8. OTHER MATTERS
  - a. Election of a new CTC Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson
- 9. ADOPTION OF THE CTC REPORT
- 10. CLOSE OF MEETING



Held remotely, 19 - 22 January 2022, (NZDT)

## **ANNEX 2 - List of Participants**

#### CTC CHAIRPERSON

Andrew WRIGHT CTC Chairperson andrew.wright@mpi.govt.nz

#### **MEMBERS**

#### **AUSTRALIA**

Jo ELPHINSTONE

Department of Agriculture, Water and the Environment jo.elphinstone@awe.gov.au

Viv FERNANDEZ

Australian Fisheries Management Authority viv.fernandes@afma.gov.au

Kathryn BENNING

Australian Fisheries Management Authority kathryn.benning@afma.gov.au

Trent TRIMMISS

The Australian Bureau of Agricultural and Resource Economics trent.timmiss@awe.gov.au

Lynda GOLDSWORTHY

Institute of Marine and Antarctic Sciences, University of Tasmania lynda.goldsworthy@utas.edu.au

#### **CHILE**

Alicia GALLARDO

Undersecretariat for Fisheries and Aquaculture agallardo@subpesca.cl

Mauro URBINA

Undersecretariat for Fisheries and Aquaculture murbina@subpesca.cl

Katherine BERNAL

Undersecretariat for Fisheries and Aquaculture kbernal@subpesca.cl

Osvaldo URRUTIA

Undersecretariat for Fisheries and Aquaculture ourrutia@subpesca.cl

Pablo ORTIZ

National Fisheries and Aquaculture Service portiz@sernapesca.cl

Victor ESPEJO

Undersecretariat of Fisheries and Aquaculture vespejo@subpesca.cl

Francisco FERNÁNDEZ

National Fisheries and Aquaculture Service ffernandezu@sernapesca.cl

Aurora GUERRERO

Undersecretariat for Fisheries and Aquaculture aguerrero@subpesca.cl

Jacqueline SALAS

Undersecretariat for Fisheries and Aquaculture jsquiroga@subpesca.cl



Cristian QUEZADA

Undersecretariat for Fisheries and Aquaculture cquezada@subpesca.cl

Marcos TRONCOSO

Undersecretariat for Fisheries and Aquaculture mtroncoso@subpesca.cl

Lorena BUROTTO

Undersecretariat for Fisheries and Aquaculture lburotto@subpesca.cl

Carlos AHUMADA

National Fisheries and Aquaculture Service cahumadaq@sernapesca.cl

Paola ARROYO
Directemar
parroyom@directemar.cl

Renzo TASCHERI IFOP renzo.tascheri@ifop.cl

Aquiles SEPULVEDA Fishery Research Institute asepulveda@inpesca.cl

Maximiliano ALARMA Centro de Investigación Aplicada del Mar alarmam@gmail.com

Andres COUVE Sonapesca andrescouve@entelchile.net

Andres DAROCH FoodCorp Chile SA adaroch@fcc.cl

Mario TAPIA Sonapesca mario.tapia@ppulegal.com

#### CHINA

Haiwen SUN Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs bofdwf@126.com Ce LIU

China Overseas Fisheries Association liuce@cofa.net.cn

Gang LI

Shanghai Ocean University g-li@shou.edu.cn

Leilei Zou

Shanghai Ocean University Ilzou@shou.edu.cn

Meng WANG China Overseas Fisheries Association wangmeng@cofa.net.cn

#### **COOK ISLANDS**

Kerrie ROBERTSON Ministry of Marine Resources k.robertson@mmr.gov.ck

Latishia MAUI Ministry of Marine Resources I.maui@mmr.gov.ck

Andrew JONES Ministry of Marine Resources a.jones@mmr.gov.ck

#### **CUBA**

Nora YONG MENA International Affairs and Communications, MINAL nora.yong@minal.gob.cu

Gilda María DIEPPA SANABARIA Legal Department, MINAL gilda.dieppa@minal.gob.cu

Mercedes FERNANDEZ Legal Department, MINAL mercedes.fernandez@minal.gob.cu

#### **ECUADOR**

Andres ARENS Ministry of Production, Foreign Trade, Investment and Fisheries



aarens@produccion.gob.ec

Dana ZAMBRANO

Ministry of Production, Foreign Trade, Investment and Fisheries

dzambranoz@produccion.gob.ec

Jose Isidro ANDRADE

Ministry of Production, Foreign Trade, Investment and Fisheries

jandrade@produccion.gob.ec

Rebeca ESPINOZA

Ministry of Production, Foreign Trade, Investment and Fisheries

respinoza@produccion.gob.ec

Jorge COSTAIN

Transmarina

jcostain@transmarina.com

Guillermo MORAN

Transmarina

gamv6731@gmail.com

Maria Belen MONTESINOS

Transmarina

bmontesinos@tracendio.com

#### **EUROPEAN UNION**

Fiona HARFORD

**European Commission** 

fiona.harford@ec.europa.eu

Benoit MARCOUX

European Commission

benoit.marcoux@ext.ec.europa.eu

Gema DE FRUTOS

MAPA - Spain

gdefrutos@mapa.es

Carmen MANCEBO

MAPA - Spain

cmancebo@mapa.es

Teresa MOLINA SCHMID

MAPA - Spain

tmolina@mapa.es

Jéróme CHLADEK

German Federal Ministry of Food and Agriculture

jerome.chladek@bmel.bund.de

Joanna CIAGADLAK-SOCHA

Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Development,

Poland

joanna.ciagadlak-socha@minrol.gov.pl

Anna ROKOSZ

Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Development,

Poland

anna.rokosz@minrol.gov.pl

Stanislaw KASPEREK

General Sea Fisheries Inspectorate, Poland

stanislaw.kasperek@girm.gov.pl

Rob BANNING

Parlevliet & Van der Plas

rba@pp-group.eu

Gerard VAN BALSFOORT

Pelagic Freezer-trawler Association

gbalsfoort@pelagicfish.eu

Emil REMISZ

North Atlantic Producers Organization

emil@paop.org.pl

Diederik PARLEVLIET

Parlevliet & Van der Plas B.V.

sec@pp-group.eu

Boguslaw SZEMIOTH

North Atlantic Producers Organization

szemioth@atlantex.pl

#### **FAROE ISLANDS**

Durita JÓANSDÓTTIR

Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Culture

duritalj@ummr.fo

Janet NORREGAARD

Ministry of Fisheries

janet.norregaard@fisk.fo

Per GULKLETT

P/F Thor

per@thor.fo



#### **KOREA**

Geunryeong KIM Ministry of Oceans and Fisheries geunryeongkim@korea.kr

Ilkang NA Ministry of Oceans and Fisheries ikna@korea.kr

Taerin KIM Fisheries Monitoring Centre shararak@korea.kr

Donghwan CHOE Korea Overseas Fisheries Association dhchoe@kosfa.org

Soomin KIM Korea Overseas Fisheries Cooperation Center soominkim@kofci.org

Yoon Hyung KIM
Dongwon Industries Co. Ltd.
unhyung@dongwon.com

#### **NEW ZEALAND**

Geremy SCHOFIELD Ministry for Primary Industries geremy.schofield@mpi.govt.nz

Tiffany BOCK
Ministry for Primary Industries
tiffany.bock@mpi.govt.nz

Monique MESSINA Ministry for Primary Industries Monique.Messina@mpi.govt.nz

Marco MILARDI Ministry for Primary Industries marco.milardi@mpi.govt.nz

Abby HUTCHISON Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade abby.hutchison@mfat.govt.nz

Jordan MURPHY Ministry for Primary Industries jordan.murphy@mpi.govt.nz

Shane GEANGE
Department of Conservation sgeange@doc.govt.nz

Ruby MOYNIHAN MAGSIG Department of Conservation rmagsig@doc.govt.nz

Kim DRUMMOND Te Ohu Kaimoana kim.drummond@teohu.maori.nz

Colin Smith
Westfleet Seafoods Limited
colin@westfleet.co.nz

#### **PERU**

Mario CAVERO Ministerio de la Producción mcavero@produce.gob.pe

Marilú BOUCHÓN Instituto del Mar del Peru mbouchon@imarpe.gob.pe

Dalia CHANG Ministerio de la Producción dchang@produce.gob.pe

Jorge Csirke Instituto del Mar del Peru jorge.csirke@gmail.com

Alejandro VELÁSQUEZ Ministerio de la Producción avelasquez@produce.gob.pe

Alejandra PAZ Ministry of Foreign Affairs apaz@rree.gob.pe

Walter BARRERA Ministerio de la Producción wbarrera@produce.gob.pe

Riter VARGAS Ministerio de la Producción rvargas@produce.gob.pe



Gertrudis QUIJADA Ministerio de la Producción gquijada@produce.gob.pe

Albina RUIZ Ministerio de la Producción aruizr@produce.gob.pe

Jose MUÑOZ Ministerio de la Producción jmunoza@produce.gob.pe

Lincol Polo Ministerio de la Producción lpolo@produce.gob.pe

Miguel Lleelish Ministerio de la Producción mlleellish@produce.gob.pe

Ana ALEGRE Instituto del Mar del Peru palegre@imarpe.gob.pe

Pablo MARÍN Instituto del Mar del Peru pmarin@imarpe.gob.pe

Giovanna SOTIL Instituto del Mar del Peru gsotil@imarpe.gob.pe

Juan ARGÚELLES Instituto del Mar del Peru jarguelles@imarpe.gob.pe

Daniel GRADOS Instituto del Mar del Peru dgrados@imarpe.gob.pe

Jimena MENDOZA Instituto del Mar del Peru jimendoza@imarpe.gob.pe

Sandra CAHUIN Instituto del Mar del Peru scahuin@imarpe.gob.pe

#### **RUSSIAN FEDERATION**

Dmitry KREMENYUK Federal Agency for Fisheries d.kremenyuk@fishcom.ru

Aleksandr NESTEROV Federal Research Institute of Fisheries and Oceanography (VNIRO) nesterov@atlantniro.ru

Efim GERBER
Federal Research Institute of Fisheries and
Oceanography (VNIRO)
neptun@atlantniro.ru

Grigory MASLYANKIN Federal Research Institute of Fisheries and Oceanography (VNIRO) maslyankin@atlantniro.ru

Mikhail LARIONOV Murmansk Trawl Fleet Im@noreboafrica.com

#### **CHINESE TAIPEI**

Ming-Fen WU Fisheries Agency mingfen@ms1.fa.gov.tw

Han-Ching CHUANG Fisheries Agency hanching@ms1.fa.gov.tw

Shih-Chin CHOU Fisheries Agency shihcin@ms1.fa.gov.tw

Shih-Ming KAO National Sun Yat-Sen University kaosm@udel.edu

Fang-Chia HSU
Overseas Fisheries Development Council
melody0555@ofdc.org.tw

Tzu-Yao CHEN
Department of International Organisations tychen01@mofa.gov.tw



#### UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Michael TOSATTO NOAA Fisheries michael.tosatto@noaa.gov

Colin BRINKMAN
US Department of State
brinkmancc@state.gov

Michael BRAKKE NOAA Fisheries, Office of International Affairs and Seafood Inspection michael.brakke@noaa.gov

Elizabeth O'SULLIVAN NOAA Fisheries elizabeth.osullivan@noaa.gov

Emily REYNOLDS NOAA Fisheries emily.reynolds@noaa.gov

Emily CRIGLER NOAA Fisheries emily.crigler@noaa.gov

Kristen CALDWELL US Coast Guard kristen.b.caldwell@uscg.mil

Laura CIMO NOAA Fisheries Office of International Affairs and Seafood Inspection laura.cimo@noaa.gov

Martina SAGAPOLU NOAA Fisheries Office of Law Enforcement martina.sagapolu@noaa.gov

Terry BOONE NOAA Fisheries Office of Law Enforcement terry.boone@noaa.gov

John SYSLO NOAA Fisheries john.syslo@noaa.gov

Katheryn PATTERSON NOAA Fisheries katheryn.patterson@noaa.gov Archie SOLIAI
Western Pacific Regional Fishery Management
Council
archie.soliai@gmail.com

#### **VANUATU**

Gerry GEEN
Vanuatu Fisheries
ggeen@bigpond.net.au

Tony ZUANICH
Unimed Glory SA
tony@unimedshipping.com

#### **CNCPs**

#### **CURACAO**

Ramon CHONG
Ministry of Economic Development ramon.chong@gobiernu.cw

Stephen MAMBI Ministry of Economic Development stephen.mambi@gobiernu.cw

Michael SUAREZ Ministry of Economic Development michael.suarez@gobiernu.cw

#### **LIBERIA**

Francis BOIMAH National Fisheries and Aquaculture Authority fboimah@nafaa.gov.lr

#### **PANAMA**

Flor TORRIJOS Aquatic Resources Authority ftorrijos@arap.gob.pa

Raúl DELGADO Aquatic Resources Authority rdelgado@arap.gob.pa



Mario AGUILAR Aquatic Resources Authority meaguilar@arap.gob.pa

Vivian QUIROS Aquatic Resources Authority vquiros@arap.gob.pa

Rudick KANT Aquatic Resources Authority rkant@arap.gob.pa

# INTER GOVERNMENTAL ORGANISATIONS

#### **FAO**

William EMERSON NFIDD - FAO william.emerson@fao.org

Anthony THOMPSON NFIDD - FAO anthony.thompson@fao.org

#### **IATTC**

Shane GRIFFITHS Inter-American Tropical Tuna Commission sgriffiths@iattc.org

Brad WILEY Inter-American Tropical Tuna Commission bwiley@iattc.org

# NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANISATIONS

#### **ANCORS**

Quentin HANICH Australian National Centre for Ocean Resources and Security hanich@uow.edu.au

Bianca HAAS Australian National Centre for Ocean Resources and Security bhaas@uow.edu.au

#### **CALAMASUR**

Alfonso MIRANDA Sociedad Nacional de Industrias alfonso.miranda@pezex.pe

Dario ALVITES
PERUPEZ
alvites@perupez.com

Edwin HOUGHTON ARAMARPA Paita hougross@hotmail.com

Gerardo CARRERA Produmar gcarrera@produmar.com

Pedro SILVA Cooperativas La Islilla y La Tortuga pesilmin@hotmail.com

Rubén ROJAS ALMAR SPA gerencia@almarspa.cl

Juan BAYONA APADEXPO - Parachique La Bocana apadexpoparachique@hotmail.com

Juan BAYONA

APADEXPO - Parachique La Bocana
apadexpoparachique@hotmail.com

Bernal CHAVARRIA Sustainable Fisheries Partnership bchavarria@lsg-cr.com

Stefany ROJAS Sustainable Fisheries Partnership stefany.rojas@sustainablefish.org

Renato GOZZER Sustainable Fisheries Partnership renato.gozzer@sustainablefish.org

Hugo ALSINA Sustainable Fisheries Partnership hugo.alsina@protonmail.ch

Luz MONTALVAN Sustainable Fisheries Partnership



lma.traduccion@gmail.com

#### **DSCC**

Duncan CURRIE
Deep Sea Conservation Coalition
duncan@globelaw.com

Barry WEEBER
Deep Sea Conservation Coalition
baz.weeber@gmail.com

#### **ECO**

Catherine WALLACE Environment and Conservation Organisations of NZ cath.wallace10@gmail.com

#### **EDF**

Samuel AMOROS Environmental Defense Fund samoros@edf.org

#### **HSFG**

Andy SMITH High Seas Fisheries Group andy@latsouth.co.nz

Dean JURASOVICH Sanford djurasovich@sanford.co.nz

Jack FENAUGHTY
High Seas Fisheries Group
jack@silvifishresources.com

#### **IMCS Network**

Mark YOUNG
International MCS Network
myoung@imcsnet.org

#### **MSC**

Rodrigo POLANCO Marine Stewardship Council rodrigo.polanco@msc.org

#### **OBSERVER STATES**

#### **BELIZE**

Valarie LANZA Belize High Seas Fisheries valerie.lanza@bhsfu.gov.bz

Robert ROBINSON Belize High Seas Fisheries robert.robinson@bhsfu.gov.bz

Abilio DOMINGUEZ International consultant abilio.dominguez@int-marconsult.com

#### **OTHERS**

#### **INVITED EXPERTS**

Guan OON CLS OCEANIA Pty Ltd guan@clsoceania.com

#### SPRFMO CHAIRPERSONS

Luis MOLLEDO Commission Chairperson luis.molledo@ec.europa.eu

Jimmy VILLAVICENCIO FAC Chairperson jvillavicencio@v-a.com.ec

Jim IANELLI SC Chairperson jim.ianelli@noaa.gov

#### SPRFMO SECRETARIAT

Craig LOVERIDGE Executive Secretary cloveridge@sprfmo.int

Randy JENKINS Compliance Manager rjenkins@sprfmo.int



Susana DELGADO SUÁREZ Coordination and Communication Officer sdelgado@sprfmo.int

Tiffany VIDAL Data Manager tvidal@sprfmo.int

Yanbin LIU Finance and Office Manager Yliu@sprfmo.int



Held remotely, 19 - 22 January 2022, (NZDT)

## ANNEX 3 - CTC Meeting Programme and Timetable

Week 1	Session 1 (2hrs)	Session 2 (2hrs)
Day 1: FAC - 18 January 2022* (7am Tuesday NZDT/ 1pm Monday ECT)		
Day 2: CTC - 19 January 2022 (7am Wednesday NZDT/ 1pm Tuesday ECT)	Opening: Agenda/Administrative Assessment of Compliance: - Draft Compliance Report - Follow-up Actions - Provisional Compliance Report	Implementation Reports:  - Trachurus murphyi  - Record of Vessels  - Vessel Monitoring System  - Port Inspection Report from WG-PI Chairperson  - Intersessional WG-PI
Day 3: CTC - 20 January 2022 (7am Thursday NZDT/ 1pm Wednesday ECT)	Implementation Reports: - Observer Programme - Current Evaluations Current and Draft IUU List CNCP Applications: - Current CNCPs - Other Applicants	CMM Proposals: Introduction - Amend Current CMMs (5) (Transhipment, Exploratory Potting, Squid x3) - New CMMs (2) (Acoustic Survey, Exploratory Toothfish)
Day 4:  CTC - 21 Jan 2022 — Session 1  FAC - 21 Jan 2022 — Session 2  (7am Friday NZDT/ 1pm Thursday ECT)	CMM Proposals: Introduction  - CMMs for Review 2022 (4) (T. murphyi, Data standards, Bottom fishing, Marine pollution) The 2020 VME Encounter Other Matters:  - CCAMLR Arrangement  - CPPS MoU  - IMCS Network  - Election of a Chairperson and vice-Chairperson	
Day 5:  CTC - 22 Jan 2022- Session 1  FAC - 22 Jan 2022- Session 2  (7am Sat NZDT/ 1pm Fri ECT)	CMS /IUU recommendations CTC Report adoption	

<sup>\*</sup>Dates shown are relative to NZDT. Times shown reflect the CTC and FAC Chairperson locations.

The weekend break is approximately ~55 hrs or slightly over 2 days. The Commission will begin the following week at 7pm Monday NZDT (i.e., 7am Monday CET). There will be a break of 15 minutes between sessions.



# Local timing (session start) for the 2022 SPRFMO Annual Meeting

## (Day is relative to NZDT)

Location	Week 1 timing	Week 2 timing	Time Zone
Rarotonga, Cook Islands	Day X-1 at 08:00 am	Day X-1 at 8:00 pm	CKT
Honolulu, United States of America	Day X-1 at 08:00 am	Day X-1 at 8:00 pm	HST
Guayaquil, Republic of Ecuador	Day X-1 at 1:00 pm	Day X at 01:00 am	ECT
La Havana, Republic of Cuba	Day X-1 at 1:00 pm	Day X at 01:00 am	CDT
Lima, Republic of Peru	Day X-1 at 1:00 pm	Day X at 01:00 am	PET
Santiago, Republic of Chile	Day X-1 at 3:00 pm	Day X at 03:00 am	CLST
Tórshavn, Kingdom of Denmark in respect of the Faroe Islands	Day X-1 at 6:00 pm	Day X at 06:00 am	WET
Brussels, Belgium, European Union	Day X-1 at 7:00 pm	Day X at 07:00 am	CET
Moscow, Russian Federation	Day X-1 at 9:00 pm	Day X at 09:00 am	MSK
Shanghai, People's Republic of China	Day X at 02:00 am	Day X at 2:00 pm	CST
Taipei, Chinese Taipei	Day X at 02:00 am	Day X at 2:00 pm	CST
Seoul, Republic of Korea	Day X at 03:00 am	Day X at 3:00 pm	KST
Canberra, Australia	Day X at 05:00 am	Day X at 5:00 pm	AEDT
Port Vila, Republic of Vanuatu	Day X at 05:00 am	Day X at 5:00 pm	VUT
Wellington, New Zealand	Day X at 07:00 am	Day X at 7:00 pm	NZDT



Held remotely, 19 - 22 January 2022, (NZDT)

## ANNEX 4 - Provisional Compliance Report

As per paragraph 18 of CMM 10-2020 (CMS), the Provisional Compliance Report shall not constitute public domain data, but the Final Compliance Report and the executive summary shall be public domain data (refer Annex 6a of the COMM10-Report)



Held remotely, 19 - 22 January 2022, (NZDT)

### ANNEX 5 - Provisional IUU Vessel List

As per standard SPRFMO practice, the Provisional IUU Vessel List is not a public domain document, noting that the Final IUU Vessel List is contained in <u>Annex 6b of the COMM10-Report</u>.